























# Table of Contents

1.	INTRODUCTION	3
2.	UNDERSTANDING IN-HOUSE-PROCESSED FARM PRODUCTS	5
3.	IDENTIFYING TARGET MARKET AND CUSTOMERS	7
4.	DEVELOPING A MARKETING STRATEGY	9
5.	BRANDING AND PACKAGING	16
6.	PRICING AND POSITIONING	19
7.	DISTRIBUTION CHANNELS	22
8.	PROMOTIONAL ACTIVITIES	25
9.	ONLINE PRESENCE AND CONTENT MARKETING	27
10.	COLLABORATION AND NETWORKING	31
11.	MONITORING AND EVALUATION	33
12.	GOOD PRACTICIES	36
13.	CONCLUSIONS	44











#### 1. INTRODUCTION

The project "Promotion and Marketing Guide for In-House-Processed Farm Products in the regions of Evros, Haskovo, Smolyan and Kardzhali" is funded by "Interreg V-A Greece-Bulgaria" 2014-2020 Cooperation Programme.

It brings together 4 experienced partners from both countries, as their participation is equal.

The QUALFARM project is designed to assist farmers and producers in effectively promoting and marketing their in-house-processed farm products.

The main goal of the project is the development of innovative and quality entrepreneurship in the field of processing agricultural products, with a special emphasis on the "internal" processing of agricultural products, i.e. in farms or small workshops, thus it is related to the main objective of the program "1. Improvement of support systems for SMEs in entrepreneurship".

This goal is achieving by providing training, mentoring, providing personalized and continuous guidance on issues related to innovation, marketing, food safety and branding by specialized business support structures that will be established to the beneficiaries of the QUALFARM project.

The focusing of the project is twofold:

- (a) toward supporting existing enterprises
- (b) toward stimulating rural entrepreneurship among its dynamic segments, namely women and youth, including young graduates.

The main expected result by the QUALFARM implementation result is the opening of four (4) local business support offices - a result directly related to the main goal of the project, which is the development of innovative and quality entrepreneurship in the field of processing agricultural products, with a special emphasis on "domestic" processing of agricultural products, i.e. in farms or small workshops.

The QUALFARM Cross-Border /good practice/ Guide of In-House-Processed Farm Products is prepared by SZ REDA under Contract Q-03/01.02.2022 and any circumstances could not consider that reflects in any extend the official position of the EC or the "Interreg V-A Greece-Bulgaria" 2014-2020 Cooperation Programme Joint Secretariat or any of the beneficiaries.













The Promotion and Marketing Guide for In-House-Processed Farm Products is a comprehensive resource aimed at helping farmers and producers promote and market their in-house-processed farm products effectively. This guide offers valuable insights, strategies, and practical tips to maximize the visibility and profitability of these products in the market.

In-house-processed farm products are those that are processed and prepared on the farm itself, leveraging the farm's unique resources, expertise, and quality control. These products hold great potential for farmers and producers to showcase their skills, differentiate themselves from competitors, and meet the growing consumer demand for locally sourced and sustainable food and products options.

However, successfully promoting and marketing in-house-processed farm products requires a well-rounded approach that encompasses various aspects of branding, positioning, distribution, and promotional activities. This guide addresses these key areas and provides step-by-step guidance to help farmers and producers navigate the challenges and seize the opportunities in the market.

By following the strategies outlined in this guide, farmers and producers can enhance their brand recognition, connect with their target audience, and ultimately increase the demand and sales of their in-house-processed farm products. The guide emphasizes the importance of understanding the unique characteristics and benefits of these products, identifying the target market, developing an effective marketing strategy, creating a strong brand image, choosing appropriate distribution channels, and implementing various promotional activities.

It is crucial for farmers and producers to embrace continuous improvement and adaptability in their promotional and marketing efforts. The agricultural industry is constantly evolving, and staying updated with industry trends, consumer preferences, and emerging marketing techniques is vital for long-term success. This guide encourages beneficiaries to implement the strategies outlined within it and to remain proactive in seeking knowledge and staying current with industry developments.

By utilizing this Promotion and Marketing Guide for In-House-Processed Farm Products, farmers and producers can elevate their marketing efforts, increase their market presence, and achieve sustainable growth for their in-house-processed farm products. Let's embark on this journey together and unlock the full potential of your farm products in the market.



n









#### 2. UNDERSTANDING IN-HOUSE-PROCESSED FARM PRODUCTS

#### In this section:

- ✓ is explained the concept of in-house-processed farm products and highlight their unique characteristics and benefits;
- ✓ are discussed the various types of products that can be produced and processed on the farm.

In-house-processed farm products refer to agricultural products that are grown and processed directly on the farm itself. This approach allows farmers to have greater control over the entire production process, from cultivation to processing, resulting in high-quality and value-added products. These products often carry unique characteristics and benefits that set them apart from mass-produced alternatives.

- **2.1** *Quality and Freshness:* In-house processing ensures that farm products are harvested at peak freshness and processed immediately, preserving their natural flavors, nutrients, and quality. Consumers value the assurance of consuming fresh and locally sourced products.
- **2.2** Traceability and Transparency: With in-house processing, farmers have complete visibility and control over the production chain. This allows them to provide detailed information about the origin, cultivation practices, and processing methods used, enhancing transparency and building trust with customers.
- **2.3** Customization and Innovation: In-house processing offers the opportunity for farmers to experiment with unique product variations and tailor them to meet specific customer preferences. This flexibility allows for innovation and the creation of distinctive farm products.
- **2.4** Sustainability and Environmental Stewardship: In-house processing enables farmers to implement sustainable farming practices and minimize the carbon footprint associated with transportation and packaging. Customers increasingly seek environmentally friendly options and appreciate supporting local, eco-conscious producers.

What could be very useful in this point of development is the circular economy system<sup>i</sup>, where materials never become waste and nature is regenerated. In a circular economy, products and materials are kept in













circulation through processes like maintenance, reuse, refurbishment, remanufacture, recycling, and composting. The circular economy tackles climate change and other global challenges, like biodiversity loss, waste, and pollution, by decoupling economic activity from the consumption of finite resources.

The circular economy is based on three principles, driven by design:

- a) Eliminate waste and pollution
- b) Circulate products and materials (at their highest value)
- c) Regenerate nature

Underpinned by a transition to renewable energy and materials, the circular economy is a resilient system that is good for business, people, and the environment.

In a circular economy, products are used again and again, which reduces our use of precious raw materials and cuts CO2 emissions.

Types of In-House-Processed Farm Products:

- **2.a)** Canned and Preserved Goods: This category includes products such as jams, jellies, pickles, and canned fruits or vegetables. These products are made by preserving the freshness of seasonal produce through canning, drying, fermenting, or pickling methods.
- **2.b)** Dairy Products: Farmers can process milk into various dairy products like cheese, yogurt, butter, or ice cream. In-house processing allows for the creation of artisanal dairy products with unique flavors and textures.
- **2.c)** Baked Goods: Freshly baked bread, pastries, cakes, and cookies made with locally sourced ingredients can be popular farm products. Highlighting traditional baking methods and the use of high-quality ingredients can attract customers looking for artisanal baked goods.
- **2.e)** Specialty Beverages: Farms can produce a range of specialty beverages, including fruit juices, herbal teas, artisanal coffees, or even craft beers and wines made from farm-grown ingredients. Emphasize the farm's commitment to quality and its connection to the local terroir.













- 2.d) Value-Added Meat Products: Farms that raise livestock can process meat into value-added products such as sausages, smoked meats, cured meats, or ready-to-cook meal options. These products showcase the farm's commitment to ethical animal husbandry and highlight unique flavour profiles.
- **2.f)** Natural Skincare and Beauty Products: Utilizing herbs, flowers, and other farm-grown botanicals, farmers can create natural skincare and beauty products such as soaps, lotions, balms, and essential oils. Emphasize the use of organic and sustainable ingredients.

By processing these and other farm products on-site, farmers can leverage their unique characteristics and benefits, offering customers a diverse range of high-quality, locally sourced, and artisanal options.

#### 3. IDENTIFYING TARGET MARKET AND CUSTOMERS

#### In this section:

- ✓ is described the process of identifying the target market for your inhouse-processed farm products;
- ✓ is analysed consumer trends and preferences, conduct market research, and identify potential customers;
- ✓ are included strategies for segmenting the market and tailoring your products to specific customer groups.

Identifying the target market for your in-house-processed farm products is crucial for effective marketing and promotion. By understanding your customers' preferences and needs, you can tailor your products and marketing strategies to appeal to specific customer groups.

Here is a step-by-step process for identifying your target market and customers:

3.1 Conduct Market Research: Start by conducting thorough market research to gather information about consumer trends, preferences, and buying behaviours related to farm products. This can be done through surveys, interviews, online research, and analysing industry reports. Identify market size, growth potential, and emerging trends that can influence your target market.













- **3.2** Define Customer Profiles: Based on your market research, create customer profiles or buyer personas that represent your target customers. Consider demographic factors such as age, gender, income level, location, and lifestyle. Additionally, delve into psychographic factors such as values, interests, attitudes, and buying habits. This helps you understand the motivations and preferences of your potential customers.
- **3.3** Segment the Market: Segmentation involves dividing the broader market into distinct groups based on shared characteristics and needs. Identify segments within your target market that have similar preferences, buying behaviours, or requirements for your farm products. For example, you may have segments such as health-conscious consumers, eco-conscious consumers, or gourmet food enthusiasts. Each segment may require a lightly different marketing approach.
- **3.4** Evaluate Competitors: Analyse your competitors' target markets and customer base. Identify gaps or underserved segments that you can potentially target. Look for opportunities where your in-house-processed farm products offer unique value or differentiation compared to competitors. Differentiating factors may include organic certification, sustainable practices, or special processing techniques.
- **3.5** *Gather Customer Feedback:* Engage with existing customers and gather feedback on their preferences, satisfaction levels, and suggestions for improvement. Conduct surveys or feedback sessions to understand what aspects of your farm products appeal to them and why they choose your products over others. Use this feedback to refine your target market and product offerings.
- **3.6** Tailor Products and Marketing Strategies: Based on the information gathered, tailor your farm products and marketing strategies to appeal to your identified target market segments. This can include packaging design, product features, pricing, promotional activities, and communication channels. Align your messaging with the values, needs, and aspirations of your target customers.
- **3.7** Continuously Monitor and Adapt: Market dynamics and consumer preferences can change over time, so it's essential to continuously monitor the market and adapt your strategies accordingly. Stay updated













with industry trends, consumer feedback, and emerging opportunities. Regularly review and refine your target market segments as necessary to ensure your marketing efforts remain effective.

By following these steps, you can effectively identify your target market and customers for your in-house-processed farm products. Understanding their preferences and needs allows you to develop tailored marketing strategies that resonate with your target audience, leading to increased customer engagement and sales.

## 4. DEVELOPING A MARKETING STRATEGY

#### In this section:

- ✓ are outlined the steps involved in developing an effective marketing strategy;
- ✓ is discussed the importance of setting clear goals, defining a value proposition, and understanding your competitive advantage;
- ✓ is included a template for creating a marketing plan.

Developing an effective marketing strategy is essential for promoting and selling your in-house-processed farm products. A well-defined marketing strategy helps you reach your target audience, differentiate your products, and achieve your business goals.

Here are the steps involved in developing a marketing strategy:

- **4.1** Set Clear Goals: Start by setting clear and specific goals for your marketing efforts. These goals should be aligned with your overall business objectives. Examples of marketing goals could include increasing sales by a certain percentage, expanding market reach, launching new products, or improving brand awareness. Clear goals provide direction and focus for your marketing strategy.
- **4.2** *Define Your Value Proposition:* Your value proposition is what sets your inhouse-processed farm products apart from competitors and communicates the unique value they offer to customers. Identify the key benefits, quality, sustainability, or other differentiating factors of your products. Craft a concise and compelling value proposition that communicates why customers should choose your farm products over others.













As a strong Value Proposition could be considered the Geographical indications and Quality schemes. The Quality labels protect and promote the origins, traditions and unique characteristics of many distinctive EU products.<sup>II</sup>

EU quality policy aims to protect the names of specific products to promote their unique characteristics, linked to their geographical origin as well as traditional know-how.

Product names can be granted a 'geographical indication' (GI) if they have a specific link to the place where they are made. The GI recognition enables consumers to trust and distinguish quality products while also helping producers to market their products better.

Products that are under consideration or have been granted GI recognition are listed in <u>geographical indications registers</u>. The registers also include information on the geographical and production specifications for each product.

Recognised as intellectual property, geographical indications play an increasingly important role in <u>trade negotiations between the EU and other countries.</u>

Other EU quality schemes emphasise the traditional production process or products made in difficult natural areas such as mountains or islands.

Geographical indications apply to various foodstuffs, agricultural products, wines and spirit drinks produced in identified regions. They protect the reputation of specific product names, the regional and traditional production processes, or other essential elements (such as local breeds or plant varieties) that shape culinary heritage throughout Europe.

Agri-food products and wines can be protected as Protected Designation of Origin (PDO) and Protected Geographical Indication (PGI), and spirit drinks as Geographical Indications (GI). EU symbols have been established to publicise these products. These symbols appear on product packaging, making it easier to identify these products on the market. They guarantee that an EU product is authentic, not an imitation or counterfeit, and serve to reinforce its national and international recognition.













EU quality schemes help protect the heritage of Europe's agricultural sector and enhance consumer recognition of quality products all over the world.

- **4.2.1**.A **Protected Designation of Origin** (PDO) is reserved for the names of products with the strongest link between its characteristics and its geographical origin. Raw materials and production steps all take place in the specific geographical area, and the final product is determined by these local ingredients and producers' know-how.
- 4.2.2 A Protected Geographical Indication (PGI) also links a product to a geographical area, through its quality, characteristics and/or reputation. PGI registration requires at least one of the production, processing or preparation processes to take place in the specific region. However, the ingredients do not need to come from that region.
- 4.2.3 A **Geographical Indication** (GI) applies to spirit drinks distilled or manufactured in the specific geographical area.

Only foodstuffs and agricultural products are required to have the PDO/PGI symbols on their packaging. EU symbols are optional for wines and spirit drinks.

Protected Designation of Origin and Protected Geographical Indication are preconditions for higher market value and economic weight

The respect of local traditions and know-how is an important factor when buying food products for a great majority of Europeans (from 56% to 97% depending on the country), as showed by the Eurobarometer study since February 2023 on agriculture. Respondents are also more likely to buy food products that come from a geographical area that they know. In general, a study showed that the sales value of a product with a protected name was on average double than the sales value for a similar product without a certification. The value premium rate stood at 2.85 for wines, 2.52 for spirits and 1.5 for agricultural products and foodstuffs.













According to that same study, EU geographical indications accounted for an estimated sales value of  $\in$  74.76 billion in 2017, 6.8 % of the total sales value of the European food and drink sector estimated at  $\in$ 1,101 billion in 2017. Wines represented more than half of this value ( $\in$ 39.4 billion), agricultural products and foodstuffs 35% ( $\in$ 27.34 billion), and spirit drinks 13% ( $\in$ 10.35 billion).

Geographical indications are sold mainly on national markets (58% of their sales value). The rest of sales is equally divided between the EU market and outside of the EU.

**Products with a registered name represent 15.4% of the total EU agri-food exports**. Wines remain the most important product both in terms of total sales value (51%) and extra-EU trade (50%). Beyond its borders, the EU takes many steps to protect product authenticity and ensures that European quality products are recognised throughout the world. GI protection helps combat counterfeited products, which threaten the reputation of authentic, local and regional products and the livelihoods of their producers.

- 4.3 Understand Your Competitive Advantage: Analyse your competitors and identify your competitive advantage. This could be based on factors such as product quality, pricing, sustainable practices, local sourcing, or customer service. Understand what makes your farm products stand out and how you can leverage these advantages in your marketing strategy.
- **4.4** *Identify Target Market Segments:* Refer to the target market identification process outlined in section 13. Identify the specific market segments that are most likely to be interested in your in-house-processed farm products. Understand their needs, preferences, and buying behaviours to tailor your marketing efforts effectively.
- 4.5 Choose Marketing Channels: Select the most suitable marketing channels to reach your target market segments. These can include a combination of online and offline channels such as social media platforms, website and blog, farmers' markets, local retailers, direct sales, and collaborations with other businesses. Consider the preferences and behaviours of your target audience when choosing marketing channels.













- 4.6 Develop Key Messages: Craft clear and compelling messages that effectively communicate your value proposition and resonate with your target audience. These messages should highlight the unique qualities of your farm products and address the needs and desires of your customers. Consistency in messaging across all marketing channels helps build brand recognition and trust.
- **4.7** Create a Marketing Plan: A marketing plan outlines the specific actions and tactics you will undertake to implement your marketing strategy. It provides a roadmap for your marketing activities and helps you stay organized and focused.

Your marketing plan should include:

- > Overview: Provide an overview of your marketing strategy, goals, and target market segments.
- Marketing Tactics: Outline the specific marketing tactics you will use, such as social media campaigns, content marketing, email marketing, collaborations, or events.
- ➤ Budget: Determine the budget allocated to each marketing activity and consider the cost-effectiveness of different tactics.
- ➤ Timeline: Develop a timeline for executing your marketing plan, including specific deadlines for each activity.
- Measurement and Evaluation: Define the key metrics you will use to measure the success of your marketing efforts. This can include sales, website traffic, social media engagement, customer feedback, or market share.

Certainly! Here's a template for a **MARKETING PLAN** that includes sections for an overview, marketing tactics, budget, timeline, and measurement/evaluation:













## 1. Overview:

- Executive Summary: Provide a brief summary of the marketing plan,
   highlighting key objectives, target market, and overall strategy.
- Business/Brand Description: Describe your business/brand, its mission, values, and unique selling proposition. Provide background information on the industry, competitors, and target market.
- Marketing Objectives: Clearly state the specific goals and objectives you aim to achieve through your marketing efforts. Make sure they are measurable and aligned with your overall business goals.

## 2. Marketing Tactics:

- Target Market: Define your target market, including demographics, psychographics, and any other relevant characteristics. Explain how your product/service meets their needs and preferences.
- Positioning: Outline your brand positioning strategy and how you plan to differentiate yourself from competitors. Highlight the key messages and value proposition you will communicate to your target market.
- Marketing Mix: Describe the specific marketing tactics you will use to reach
  your target market. This may include channels such as advertising, public
  relations, social media, content marketing, events, and partnerships. Explain
  how each tactic supports your overall marketing objectives.

## 3. Budget:

- Marketing Budget: Specify the budget allocated for your marketing activities.
   Break down the budget into different categories, such as advertising, promotions, content creation, and marketing tools/platforms.
- Cost Analysis: Provide a detailed breakdown of the costs associated with each marketing tactic. Consider expenses such as production, distribution, media buying, agency fees, and any other relevant costs.













 ROI Projections: Estimate the expected return on investment (ROI) for each marketing activity. This can be based on past data, industry benchmarks, or market research. Explain how you will track and measure the success of your marketing initiatives.

## 4. Timeline:

- Marketing Calendar: Create a timeline or calendar that outlines the key marketing activities and their corresponding dates. This helps ensure a structured and organized implementation of your marketing plan.
- Milestones: Identify important milestones or deadlines for specific marketing objectives or campaigns. This allows for better tracking and accountability throughout the plan's execution.

## 5. Measurement and Evaluation:

- Key Performance Indicators (KPIs): Define the specific metrics you will use to measure the success of your marketing efforts. This may include metrics such as website traffic, conversion rates, social media engagement, sales revenue, or customer acquisition/retention rates.
- Monitoring and Evaluation: Describe how you will monitor and evaluate the
  performance of your marketing activities. Specify the tools, platforms, or
  software you will use to track and analyse data. Also, outline the frequency
  and methods of reporting on marketing results.
- Adjustments and Optimization: Explain how you will use the data and insights
  gathered from measurement and evaluation to make adjustments and
  optimize your marketing strategies. Detail the process of analysing results,
  identifying areas of improvement, and implementing changes accordingly.

Remember to regularly review and adapt your marketing strategy based on the results and changing market dynamics. Continuously measure the effectiveness of your marketing efforts and make adjustments as necessary to ensure you are achieving your goals and effectively reaching your target audience.

A well-developed marketing strategy helps you position your in-house-processed farm products effectively, attract customers, and drive business growth.













#### 5. BRANDING AND PACKAGING

#### In this section:

- ✓ is explained the significance of branding and packaging in creating a
  distinct identity for your farm products;
- ✓ provided guidance on developing a brand logo, choosing appropriate packaging materials, and creating attractive labels;
- ✓ are included examples of successful branding and packaging strategies.

Branding and packaging play a crucial role in creating a distinct identity for your in-house-processed farm products. They help communicate your farm's values, differentiate your products from competitors, and attract customers.

Here's an overview of the significance of branding and packaging, along with guidance on developing a brand logo, choosing appropriate packaging materials, and creating attractive labels:

- 5.1 Significance of Branding: Branding encompasses the overall image, personality, and reputation of your farm and its products. It goes beyond just a logo and extends to the way you communicate, the values you represent, and the emotions you evoke in your customers. Effective branding:
  - Builds Recognition: A strong brand helps customers recognize and remember your farm products among competitors.
  - Builds Trust: A well-established brand builds trust and loyalty among consumers, assuring them of quality and authenticity.
  - *Differentiates Your Products:* Branding allows you to highlight the unique qualities and value propositions of your farm products.
  - Establishes Emotional Connection: Through branding, you can create an emotional connection with your customers, fostering loyalty and repeat purchases.
- **5.2** Developing a Brand Logo: A brand logo is a visual representation of your farm's identity and serves as a symbol that customers associate with your products. When designing a brand logo:













- Reflect your Farm's Identity: Consider the values, characteristics, and unique selling points of your farm products. Incorporate these elements into the logo design.
- Simplicity and Memorability: Keep the logo design simple, memorable, and easily recognizable. Avoid complex graphics or cluttered visuals that can confuse or dilute your brand message.
- Consistency: Ensure the logo aligns with your overall brand image and can be easily adapted across various marketing channels and packaging materials.
- Choosing Packaging Materials: Packaging materials play a crucial role in protecting and preserving your farm products while also conveying your brand message. Consider the following factors when selecting packaging materials:
- *Product Protection:* Choose materials that maintain the freshness, quality, and integrity of your farm products during transportation and storage.
- Sustainability: Opt for eco-friendly and sustainable packaging options whenever possible, aligning with the values of your farm and meeting consumer demands for environmentally conscious products.
- Brand Cohesion: Packaging should reflect your farm's brand identity, including the logo, colors, typography, and overall visual aesthetics. Consistency in branding across packaging materials enhances brand recognition.
- Creating Attractive Labels: Labels on your packaging serve as an essential communication tool, providing product information and attracting customers' attention. Consider the following guidelines for creating attractive labels:
- Clear and Informative: Ensure that labels clearly display product information, including product name, ingredients, nutritional facts, certifications (e.g., organic or fair trade), and any relevant product attributes.













- Eye-Catching Design: Use visually appealing colors, fonts, and graphics that align with your brand identity and attract customers' attention on store shelves or online platforms.
- Storytelling: Tell the story of your farm and products through your labels. Share information about your farm's history, sustainable practices, or unique processing techniques to engage customers on an emotional level.
- **5.3** Examples of Successful Branding and Packaging Strategies:
  - **Example 1:** A farm that specializes in organic, small-batch jams positions itself as a premium, artisanal brand. They use elegant glass jars with minimalistic label designs that highlight the natural ingredients and emphasize the handcrafted process.
  - **Example 2:** A farm that focuses on sustainable farming and fair trade sources uses biodegradable packaging materials, such as compostable bags for their coffee beans. Their packaging prominently features their commitment to environmental and social responsibility, appealing to conscious consumers.
  - **Example 3:** A farm that produces specialty cheeses establishes a rustic and authentic brand image. Their packaging features earthy tones, hand drawn illustrations of cows grazing in fields, and vintage-style fonts. The packaging evokes a sense of tradition and craftsmanship, appealing to cheese enthusiasts looking for unique and artisanal products.
  - **Example 4:** A skincare company that specializes in natural and organic products creates a clean and minimalist brand identity. Their packaging uses sleek, white containers with simple typography and subtle botanical illustrations. The emphasis on simplicity and natural elements communicates the purity and effectiveness of their products.
  - **Example 5:** A beverage company that produces craft beers targets a niche market of beer connoisseurs. They use bold and eye-catching label designs that incorporate intricate artwork, playful fonts, and witty descriptions. The packaging reflects the creativity and passion behind their brewing process, appealing to beer enthusiasts who appreciate unique and flavourful brews.













- **Example 6:** A clothing brand that focuses on sustainable and ethical fashion utilizes eco-friendly materials and packaging. Their brand identity reflects a modern and minimalist aesthetic, with clean lines, neutral colours, and recycled materials. The packaging includes information about their sustainable practices, resonating with environmentally conscious consumers.
- Example 7: A technology company that designs innovative gadgets creates a sleek and futuristic brand image. Their packaging features metallic finishes, sharp angles, and high-quality materials, conveying a sense of cutting-edge technology and sophistication. The packaging design aligns with the company's commitment to innovation and premium quality.
- **Example 8:** A pet food company that emphasizes natural and wholesome ingredients establishes a warm and inviting brand identity. Their packaging uses earthy tones, playful illustrations of animals, and a friendly, approachable font. The packaging design evokes a sense of care and compassion, appealing to pet owners who prioritize the well-being of their furry companions.

## 6. PRICING AND POSITIONING

## In this section:

- ✓ are discussed the factors to consider when determining the pricing and
  positioning of your in-house-processed farm products;
- ✓ are explained pricing strategies, such as cost-plus pricing and marketbased pricing;
- ✓ are provided tips for positioning your products effectively in the market.

Determining the pricing and positioning of your in-house-processed farm products requires careful consideration of various factors. Pricing plays a significant role in profitability, while positioning determines how your products are perceived in the market.

Here's an overview of the factors to consider, pricing strategies, and tips for effective positioning:













- Production Costs: Calculate all the direct and indirect costs involved in producing your farm products. This includes raw materials, labour, packaging, overhead costs, and any additional expenses related to processing. Understanding your production costs is crucial for setting a baseline price that covers your expenses and ensures profitability.
- Market Analysis: Conduct market research to gain insights into the pricing landscape for similar farm products in your target market. Analyse the pricing strategies of competitors, including their product positioning, quality, and value propositions. This information helps you position your products effectively and set competitive prices.
- Value Perception: Consider the perceived value of your in-houseprocessed farm products in the eyes of your target customers. Factors such as quality, uniqueness, sustainability, and local sourcing can contribute to the perceived value and justify higher prices. Highlight these aspects in your marketing and packaging to position your products as premium offerings.
- Target Market: Understand the purchasing power and willingness to pay of your target market segments. Different customer segments may have varying price sensitivities. Consider whether your products cater to a niche market that is willing to pay a premium or a broader market that seeks more affordable options. This understanding helps determine pricing levels.
- Profit Margin: Assess your desired profit margin and financial goals.
  Consider your farm's operational costs, growth objectives, and the level of
  investment required for expanding or enhancing your product offerings.
  Ensure that your pricing strategy allows you to achieve your profit targets
  while remaining competitive.

## **Pricing Strategies:**

 Cost-Plus Pricing: This strategy involves determining the total production costs and adding a predetermined profit margin to set the product price. It ensures that your pricing covers all expenses and provides a consistent profit margin for each unit sold. However, it's essential to regularly review and adjust costs to maintain profitability.













 Market-Based Pricing: With this strategy, you determine the price based on market demand and competitor pricing. Analyse the pricing range in the market and position your products accordingly. Consider whether you want to position your products as premium, mid-range, or budget-friendly options based on their unique qualities and target market preferences.

## <u>Tips for Positioning Your Products Effectively:</u>

- Differentiation: Highlight the unique qualities and value propositions of your farm products. Emphasize factors such as organic certification, sustainable farming practices, local sourcing, or special processing techniques. Differentiation helps justify higher prices and creates a competitive advantage.
- Targeted Marketing: Tailor your marketing messages and channels to reach your target market effectively. Craft compelling narratives around your farm's story, product quality, and the benefits they offer to customers. Use channels that resonate with your target audience, such as social media platforms, local farmers' markets, or specialty food stores.
- Quality Assurance: Ensure consistent quality across your in-houseprocessed farm products. Deliver on your brand promise by maintaining high-quality standards and providing customers with a reliable and satisfying experience. Positive customer experiences build trust and increase willingness to pay higher prices.
- Packaging and Presentation: Invest in attractive and informative packaging that aligns with your brand image and the perceived value of your products. Consider eco-friendly packaging materials or innovative packaging designs that enhance shelf appeal and distinguish your products from competitors.
- Education and Storytelling: Educate your customers about the unique aspects of your farm products, such as the farming methods, processing techniques, or the story behind your farm. Engage in storytelling through marketing materials, website content, or in-person interactions to create an emotional connection with customers.













Remember, pricing and positioning are not fixed and can be adjusted over time based on market dynamics, customer feedback, and business objectives.

Regularly monitor market trends, evaluate your pricing strategy's effectiveness, and make necessary adjustments to stay competitive and meet customer expectations.

#### 7. DISTRIBUTION CHANNELS

#### In this section:

- ✓ are explored different distribution channels for your farm products, including direct sales, farmers' markets, local retailers, and online platforms;
- ✓ are discussed the advantages and challenges of each channel and provide guidance on selecting the most suitable options for your products;
- ✓ are presented Distribution Channels

Exploring and selecting the right distribution channels for your farm products is crucial for reaching your target market effectively and maximizing sales.

Here, we will discuss various distribution channels, including their advantages, challenges, and guidance on selecting the most suitable options for your products:

**7.1** *Direct Sales:* Direct sales involve selling your farm products directly to consumers without intermediaries. This can be done through on-farm sales, arm stands, or through online platforms.

## Advantages:

- *Maximum Control:* Direct sales allow you to have complete control over the sales process, pricing, and customer interactions.
- Increased Profit Margins: Cutting out intermediaries can lead to higher profit margins as you receive the full retail price for your products.
- Personalized Customer Relationships: Direct sales enable you to build personal connections with customers, fostering loyalty and repeat business.

## Challenges:













- Limited Reach: Direct sales may have a limited reach compared to other distribution channels, as you primarily rely on local customers or those who visit your farm.
- *Time and Effort:* Direct sales require dedicated time and effort to manage sales, customer inquiries, and on-farm operations.

**Guidance**: Direct sales are ideal if you have a strong local customer base or if you want to establish a direct connection with your customers. Consider creating an inviting farm stand, setting up an online store, or participating in local community events to increase visibility and attract customers.

**7.2** Farmers' Markets: Farmers' markets are community events where farmers and local producers gather to sell their products directly to consumers.

## Advantages:

- Exposure and Networking: Farmers' markets provide exposure to a diverse customer base and opportunities for networking with other local producers.
- *Direct Customer Interaction:* Selling at farmers' markets allows you to interact directly with customers, educate them about your farm, and receive immediate feedback.
- Support for Local Economy: Farmers' markets contribute to supporting the local economy and fostering a sense of community.

## Challenges:

- Seasonal Availability: Farmers' markets typically operate during specific seasons, limiting your sales opportunities throughout the year.
- Competition: Depending on the location, you may face competition from other vendors offering similar farm products.

**Guidance**: Farmers' markets are beneficial if you want to engage with your local community and gain exposure for your farm products. Research local farmers' markets, understand their requirements, and select markets that align with your target market and product offerings.

**7.3** *Local Retailers:* Selling through local retailers involves partnering with grocery stores, specialty shops, or co-ops to have your farm products stocked on their shelves.













## Advantages:

- Wider Market Reach: Local retailers can provide access to a larger customer base, extending beyond your farm's immediate vicinity.
- Brand Exposure: Having your products available in established retail outlets can increase brand exposure and attract new customers.
- *Professional Merchandising:* Retailers often provide professional merchandising and display options, enhancing the visibility of your products.

## Challenges:

- *Margins and Fees:* Retailers typically require a percentage of sales or charge fees for stocking your products, which can impact profit margins.
- Shelf Space Competition: Retailers have limited shelf space, so competition with other brands and products is inevitable.

**Guidance**: Partnering with local retailers can be beneficial if you have the capacity to meet increased demand and maintain consistent product supply. Research and approach retailers that align with your target market and share a commitment to local, sustainable products.

**7.4** Online Platforms: Selling farm products through online platforms allows you to reach customers beyond your local area and provide convenient shopping options.

## Advantages:

- Expanded Reach: Online platforms enable you to reach customers nationwide or even internationally, increasing your market potential.
- Convenience and Accessibility: Customers can shop from the comfort of their homes and access your products at any time.
- *Direct Customer Engagement:* Online platforms offer opportunities for direct customer engagement through product descriptions, reviews, and feedback.

## Challenges:

• Shipping and Logistics: Selling online requires efficient shipping and logistics management to ensure timely delivery and customer satisfaction.













 Increased Competition: Online platforms have a high level of competition, making it essential to differentiate your products and optimize your online presence.

**Guidance**: Online platforms are ideal if you have the capability to manage online operations and fulfil orders promptly. Create an engaging online store, optimize product listings with appealing descriptions and images, and leverage social media and digital marketing strategies to drive traffic to your online platform.

Choosing the Most Suitable Distribution Channels: Consider the following factors when selecting the most suitable distribution channels for your farm products:

- *Target Market:* Identify where your target customers prefer to shop and how they access farm products.
- *Product Type:* Consider the perishability, packaging requirements, and transportation feasibility of your farm products.
- Capacity and Resources: Assess your farm's capacity to meet demand, fulfill orders, and manage the logistics associated with each distribution channel.
- Market Analysis: Analyse market trends, competition, and customer preferences to determine the channels that align with your target market and product positioning.

It's worth noting that utilizing multiple distribution channels can help diversify your sales and reach different customer segments. However, it's important to ensure that your chosen channels align with your farm's capacity and resources, allowing you to maintain quality, supply consistency, and customer satisfaction.

#### 8. PROMOTIONAL ACTIVITIES

## In this section:

✓ Detail a range of promotional activities to raise awareness and generate interest in your in-house-processed farm products. This may include advertising, public relations, social media marketing, influencer collaborations, and hosting events. Provide tips for executing successful promotional campaigns.













Promotional activities are essential for raising awareness, generating interest, and driving sales of your in-house-processed farm products.

Here are various promotional activities that can help you effectively promote your products and engage with your target audience:

## 8.1 Advertising

- *Print Advertising:* Place advertisements in local newspapers, magazines, or relevant publications to reach a broader audience.
- Online Advertising: Utilize online platforms, such as search engine advertising, display ads, or social media ads, to target specific demographics and increase brand visibility.
- Outdoor Advertising: Consider billboards, signage, or banners strategically placed in high-traffic areas to capture the attention of potential customers.

# 8.2 Public Relations (PR):

- *Press Releases:* Write and distribute press releases to local media outlets, highlighting new product launches, farm updates, or unique stories about your farm.
- Media Collaborations: Seek opportunities for interviews, features, or collaborations with local newspapers, magazines, radio stations, or online publications to amplify your brand's reach.
- Community Engagement: Participate in local events, community projects, or charity initiatives to strengthen your brand's reputation and create positive PR opportunities.

## **8.3** Social Media Marketing:

- Establish a Strong Presence: Create business accounts on popular social media platforms such as Facebook, Instagram, Twitter, TikTok or Pinterest to showcase your farm products, share updates, and engage with customers.
- Engaging Content: Share high-quality photos, videos, recipes, farm stories, and behind-the-scenes content to captivate your audience and create a sense of connection with your brand.













• Influencer Collaborations: Partner with relevant influencers or bloggers in the food and agriculture industry to promote your farm products and reach a wider audience.

## **8.4** Events and Tastings:

- Farm Tours: Host guided farm tours to offer customers an immersive experience, educate them about your farming practices, and create a personal connection with your brand.
- Tastings and Demos: Conduct tastings or product demonstrations at farmers' markets, local retailers, or events to allow customers to sample your in-house-processed farm products and experience their quality first-hand.
- Workshops or Cooking Classes: Organize workshops or cooking classes centred around your farm products, demonstrating their versatility and providing customers with ideas for incorporating them into their meals.
- *Welcome-box:* which contains a selection of the products in testing quantities, so that visitors can try them themselves or take them as gifts.

#### 9. ONLINE PRESENCE AND CONTENT MARKETING

#### In this section:

- ✓ are highlighted the importance of establishing an online presence and utilizing e-commerce platforms to reach a wider customer base;
- ✓ are guided beneficiaries on creating a website, optimizing product listings, and leveraging social media to enhance online visibility and sales.

In today's digital age, establishing a strong online presence and utilizing ecommerce platforms are essential for reaching a wider customer base and maximizing sales of your in-house-processed farm products.

Here's why online presence and e-commerce are crucial, along with guidance for creating a website, optimizing product listings, and leveraging social media to enhance online visibility and sales:

**9.1** Importance of Online Presence and E-commerce:













- *Increased Reach:* An online presence allows you to reach customers beyond your local area, potentially expanding your customer base regionally, nationally, or even internationally.
- Convenience for Customers: E-commerce platforms provide customers with the convenience of shopping for your farm products at any time and from anywhere, enhancing accessibility and attracting new customers.
- Showcasing Your Brand: A website and online platforms serve as a digital storefront, where you can showcase your farm, product offerings, and brand story, creating a lasting impression on potential customers.
- Direct Customer Engagement: Online presence enables direct engagement with customers through product reviews, comments, and social media interactions, fostering a sense of community and building customer loyalty.

## **9.2** Creating a website:

- Domain and Hosting: Register a domain name that reflects your farm or product brand and choose a reliable web hosting provider to ensure your website is accessible to users.
- *User-Friendly Design:* Create a visually appealing and user-friendly website design that reflects your farm's identity and provides easy navigation for visitors.
- *Product Pages:* Create dedicated pages for each of your in-house-processed farm products, featuring detailed descriptions, high-quality images, pricing, and any relevant certifications or sustainability practices.
- Contact Information: Include your farm's contact information, such as phone number, email address, and physical address, to encourage customer inquiries and direct communication.
- Testimonials and Reviews: Display customer testimonials and reviews on your website to build trust and credibility among potential customers.

## **9.3** Optimizing Product Listings:

• Keyword Research: Conduct keyword research to identify the relevant keywords and phrases that customers use when searching for farm











products online. Incorporate these keywords naturally into your product descriptions and titles to improve search engine visibility.

- Compelling Descriptions: Write persuasive and detailed product descriptions that highlight the unique qualities, flavour profiles, and benefits of your in-house-processed farm products. Use language that resonates with your target audience and emphasizes the value they will gain from purchasing your products.
- High-Quality Images: Capture professional-quality images of your farm products that showcase their freshness, textures, and visual appeal.
   Images should be well-lit, properly cropped, and optimized for fast loading on your website or e-commerce platform.
- Clear Pricing and Shipping Information: Clearly state the pricing of your farm products, including any special offers or bundles. Provide transparent information about shipping options, costs, and estimated delivery times to set customer expectations.

## 9.4 Leveraging Social Media:

- Choosing Relevant Platforms: Identify the social media platforms that your target audience frequents the most, such as Facebook, Instagram, Twitter, TikTok or Pinterest. Focus your efforts on these platforms to maximize engagement.
- Engaging Content: Create compelling and visually appealing content that showcases your farm, behind-the-scenes processes, recipe ideas, customer testimonials, or promotions. Encourage interaction and dialogue with your audience by responding to comments and messages promptly.
- Hashtags and Influencers: Use relevant hashtags in your social media posts to increase visibility and reach. Collaborate with influencers or food bloggers who align with your brand to promote your farm products to their followers.
- Encouraging User-Generated Content: Encourage customers to share their experiences with your farm products by posting photos, reviews, or recipes and tagging your social media accounts. This user-generated content can serve as social proof and attract new customers.













- *Blogging:* Maintain a farm blog or contribute guest articles to relevant platforms, sharing educational content, recipes, and stories about your farm products to establish authority and engage with your audience.
- *Email Marketing:* Build an email list of interested customers and regularly send newsletters or product updates, offering exclusive promotions, recipes, or farm news.
- Video Content: Create informative and visually appealing videos showcasing your farm, product preparation methods, or recipes using your in-house-processed farm products. Share them on platforms like YouTube or social media.

Tips for Executing Successful Promotional Campaigns:

- Define Clear Objectives: Determine the specific goals of your promotional campaigns, such as increasing sales, building brand awareness, or expanding customer base. This helps you measure the success of your efforts.
- Know Your Target Audience: Understand the demographics, preferences, and interests of your target market to tailor your promotional messages and channels effectively.
- Consistent Branding: Ensure consistency in branding across all promotional materials, including logos, colours, fonts, and messaging, to create a cohesive and recognizable brand image.
- Collaborate with Partners: Seek collaborations with local businesses, food bloggers, or influencers to leverage their networks and amplify your reach.
- Monitor and Analyse Results: Regularly track the performance of your promotional activities by measuring key metrics such as website traffic, social media engagement, or sales. Analyse the data to assess the effectiveness of different strategies and make adjustments as needed.

Remember, effective promotional activities require planning, creativity, and ongoing evaluation, maintaining an active online presence requires regular updates, monitoring customer













## 10. COLLABORATION AND NETWORKING

#### In this section:

- ✓ Emphasize the benefits of collaboration and networking with other local and cross-boarder farmers, producers, and relevant stakeholders;
- ✓ Discuss ways to establish partnerships, joint marketing initiatives, and participate in local community events;
- ✓ Encourage the sharing of resources and knowledge.

Collaboration and networking with other local farmers, producers, and relevant stakeholders can bring numerous benefits to your in-house-processed farm products. By working together, you can leverage collective resources, expand market reach, and foster a sense of community.

Here are ways to establish partnerships, joint marketing initiatives, and participate in local community events:

## **10.1** Establishing Partnerships:

- Identify Potential Partners: Research and identify other local farmers, producers, or businesses whose products or values complement your inhouse-processed farm products. Look for shared target markets or opportunities for collaboration.
- Reach Out and Connect: Initiate contact with potential partners through email, phone calls, or in-person meetings. Express your interest in collaborating and discuss potential ways to work together for mutual benefit.
- Joint Product Offerings: Explore the possibility of creating joint product offerings or bundles that combine your farm products with complementary items. This allows you to tap into each other's customer base and cross-promote products.
- Shared Distribution Channels: Collaborate with other local farmers to create shared distribution channels, such as co-operative retail spaces or online platforms, where multiple farm products are offered collectively.

## **10.2** Joint Marketing Initiatives:













- Co-Branding: Collaborate on marketing campaigns or initiatives that highlight the collective strength of multiple local farmers and producers. This can involve joint branding, logo placement, or the use of a shared tagline that emphasizes the community aspect.
- Collaborative Advertising: Pool resources with other farmers or producers to undertake joint advertising efforts in local publications, online platforms, or through outdoor advertising. This helps reduce individual costs and increases the impact of marketing campaigns.
- Cross-Promotion: Cross-promote each other's products through social media shout-outs, blog features, or newsletters. Share each other's content, recipes, or news updates to reach a wider audience and introduce customers to complementary products.

## **10.3** Participating in Local Community Events:

- Farmers' Markets and Food Festivals: Participate in local farmers' markets, food festivals, or other community events that showcase local produce. These events provide opportunities to engage with customers, build relationships, and gain exposure for your farm products.
- Farm-to-Table Dinners: Collaborate with local chefs or restaurants to host farm-to-table dinners featuring your in-house-processed farm products. These events create a unique dining experience that highlights the connection between local farms and the food served.
- Educational Workshops: Organize educational workshops or demonstrations in collaboration with other farmers or organizations. Share knowledge about sustainable farming practices, food preparation, or the benefits of in-house-processed farm products.

## **10.4** Sharing Resources and Knowledge:

- Local Farm Networks: Join local farm networks, agricultural associations, or co-operative groups to connect with fellow farmers, share resources, and exchange knowledge. These networks often provide opportunities for collaborative projects or access to shared equipment.
- Farm Visits and Exchanges: Arrange farm visits or exchanges with other farmers to learn from their practices, share experiences, and foster a sense of community within the local farming industry.













- Knowledge-Sharing Events: Organize panel discussions, seminars, or webinars where local farmers can share their expertise, challenges, and success stories. This encourages collaboration and facilitates the exchange of valuable information.
- Cross-border<sup>iii</sup> cooperation is one of the most important challenges for the sustainable development of a country. In EU countries, cross-border cooperation is seen as a way of solving common problems and making the best use of the potential of neighbouring territories [1]. In general, within the framework of major economic unions, sustainable cross-border cooperation is a good way to strengthen foreign economic ties in the cultural, economic, technological, tourism, and environmental spheres [2,3,4,5]. The exchange of resources reduces differences in the standard of living of the population and the income levels of countries. Sustainable cross-border cooperation strengthens the economic capacity of countries involved in cross-border cooperation and provides a common basis for economic growth and well-being [6,7,8,9].

By collaborating and networking with other local farmers, producers, and stakeholders, you can enhance the visibility of your farm products, create new marketing opportunities, and strengthen the local farming community as a whole. Together, you can leverage collective resources, knowledge, and support to achieve mutual success.

## 11. MONITORING AND EVALUATION

#### In this section:

- ✓ are explained the importance of monitoring and evaluating your marketing efforts to measure the success of your promotional activities:
- ✓ are provided tools and metrics to track sales, customer feedback, and market penetration;
- ✓ are discussed the process of analysing data and making necessary adjustments to your marketing strategies.

Monitoring and evaluating your marketing efforts is essential for measuring the success of your promotional activities and making informed decisions to optimize your marketing strategies.













Here's why monitoring and evaluation are important, along with tools and metrics to track your marketing performance and the process of analysing data and making necessary adjustments:

## **11.1** Importance of Monitoring and Evaluation:

- Performance Measurement: Monitoring and evaluation provide insights into how your marketing activities are performing, allowing you to assess the effectiveness of your strategies and tactics.
- Return on Investment (ROI): By tracking and evaluating marketing metrics, you can assess the ROI of your promotional activities and determine whether your marketing investments are generating the desired outcomes.
- Decision Making: Monitoring and evaluation help you make data-driven decisions by providing a clear understanding of what works and what needs improvement in your marketing efforts.

## **11.2** Tools and Metrics for Tracking Marketing Performance:

- Sales Data: Monitor your sales data regularly to track the performance of your in-house-processed farm products. This includes tracking sales volume, revenue, and trends over time. You can use tools like point-ofsale systems, sales reports, or e-commerce platforms to gather sales data.
- Website Analytics: Utilize website analytics tools, such as Google Analytics, to gain insights into website traffic, visitor behavior, and conversion rates. Monitor metrics like website visits, page views, bounce rates, and conversion rates to evaluate the effectiveness of your website as a marketing tool.
- Social Media Metrics: Each social media platform provides its own set of analytics tools to measure the performance of your social media marketing efforts. Monitor metrics such as reach, engagement, likes, comments, shares, and click-through rates to assess the effectiveness of your social media campaigns.
- Customer Feedback: Collect and analyze customer feedback through surveys, online reviews, or direct interactions to gain insights into













customer satisfaction, preferences, and areas for improvement. Monitor metrics like customer ratings, reviews, and feedback scores to assess the perception of your farm products and customer experiences.

- Market Penetration: Track market penetration metrics to understand your farm products' reach and market share. This can include tracking the number of new customers, repeat purchases, market growth rates, or market share percentage.
- **11.3** Process of Analysing Data and Making Adjustments:
- Set Baseline and Goals: Establish baseline metrics and set specific, measurable goals for your marketing efforts. This provides a benchmark for evaluation and helps you determine whether your marketing activities are meeting the desired objectives.
- Regular Monitoring: Continuously monitor and collect data on the identified metrics. Set up regular reporting intervals to track progress and identify any changes or trends.
- Data Analysis: Analyse the collected data to identify patterns, trends, and areas of strength or weakness in your marketing performance. Look for correlations between marketing activities and desired outcomes.
- Identify Successes and Areas for Improvement: Identify the marketing strategies and tactics that have been successful in achieving your goals. Determine areas where improvements or adjustments are needed to enhance your marketing effectiveness.
- Adjust Strategies and Tactics: Based on the data analysis and insights gained, make necessary adjustments to your marketing strategies, channels, messaging, or promotional activities. Implement changes that align with your objectives and address the identified areas for improvement.
- Test and Iterate: Implement changes systematically and measure their impact. Conduct A/B testing, pilot programs, or experiments to assess the effectiveness of new strategies or tactics before full implementation.
- Continuously Monitor and Evaluate: Maintain an ongoing monitoring and evaluation process to ensure that your marketing efforts are consistently













assessed, adjusted, and optimized based on changing market dynamics, customer preferences, and business objectives.

By consistently monitoring and evaluating your marketing efforts, you can identify what is working well, make data-driven decisions, and adapt your strategies to maximize the effectiveness of your promotional activities. Regular analysis and adjustment are key to achieving marketing success and driving business growth.

#### 12. GOOD PRACTICIES

#### In this section:

- √ are summarise why Good Practices are needed;
- ✓ are presented results of a Good Practices research;
- ✓ are given suggestion of a Good Practice which to be followed also as a next project base;

Good practices are established guidelines, strategies, or behaviours that are followed to achieve desired outcomes efficiently, effectively, and ethically. They are intended to ensure that tasks, processes, and actions are performed in a consistent and responsible manner. Good practices serve various purposes across different contexts, including:

- 12.1 <u>Efficiency</u>: Good practices help streamline processes and workflows, minimizing wasted time and resources. They provide a structured approach to completing tasks, allowing for smoother and more organized operations.
- **12.2** <u>Quality:</u> Following good practices contributes to the production of high-quality outcomes. By adhering to established guidelines and standards, the likelihood of errors, defects, and subpar results is reduced.
- **12.3** Consistency: Good practices promote uniformity in actions and decisions. Consistency is important for maintaining a reliable and predictable environment, whether in business, software development, or other fields.
- 12.4 <u>Safety:</u> In various industries, good practices are essential for ensuring the safety of individuals and the environment. Following safety protocols helps prevent accidents, injuries, and negative impacts on health and the environment.













- 12.5 Compliance: Many fields have regulations, laws, or standards that must be met. Good practices often align with these requirements, helping organizations and individuals adhere to legal and industryspecific mandates.
- 12.6 <u>Learning and Improvement:</u> Good practices often incorporate feedback loops and opportunities for reflection. By analysing successes and failures, individuals and organizations can identify areas for improvement and adjust their practices accordingly.
- **12.7** <u>Risk Management:</u> Certain practices are designed to mitigate risks. They help identify potential issues early on and implement measures to prevent or minimize negative consequences.
- **12.8** Ethics and Integrity: Good practices emphasize ethical behaviour and integrity. They guide individuals and organizations to make responsible decisions that consider the well-being of stakeholders and society at large.
- 12.9 <u>Collaboration</u>: Standardized practices facilitate communication and collaboration among team members. When everyone follows the same procedures, it becomes easier to understand and contribute to shared projects.
- **12.10**<u>Long-term Sustainability:</u> Many good practices promote sustainable practices that consider the long-term impacts on the environment, society, and resources. This is especially relevant in areas like environmental conservation and resource management.
- **12.11**Customer Satisfaction: Implementing good practices can lead to better customer satisfaction by delivering consistent and high-quality products or services that meet or exceed expectations.
- **12.12**<u>Innovation:</u> While good practices provide a foundation, they can also be adapted and improved upon to foster innovation. They serve as a starting point for experimentation and creative problem-solving.

Overall, good practices contribute to efficient, ethical, and successful outcomes across a wide range of endeavours, from personal tasks to complex organizational operations. They provide a framework for excellence and continual improvement.

During the QUALFARM Cross-Border /good practice/ Guide of In-House-Processed Farm Products preparation by SZ REDA a wider international database of potential good practices has been researched by the SZ REDA team looking













for the most appropriate which to be provided as such with a high potential of adaptation and integration. The research includes the following:

- **A.** European Organic Labeling and Certification: The EU's organic labeling and certification standards provide a unified framework for organic products across member states. Farmers and producers adhering to these standards can access a larger cross-border market for their in-house-processed organic farm products.
- **B.** Protected Designations of Origin (PDO) and Protected Geographical Indications (PGI): PDO and PGI labels highlight the authenticity and unique qualities of regional food products. These labels foster cross-border cooperation by promoting products with specific geographic origins, encouraging collaboration among producers within the same region.
- C. European Network for Rural Development (ENRD): ENRD facilitates knowledge sharing and best practice exchange among rural development stakeholders across EU member states. It supports cross-border cooperation projects related to rural entrepreneurship, including in-house processing of farm products.
- **D.** Interreg Programs: The Interreg programs promote cross-border, transnational, and interregional cooperation within the EU. These programs fund projects that aim to improve regional development and economic growth, including initiatives related to agri-food processing and marketing.
- **E.** EUREKA Network Projects: EUREKA is a platform for international cooperation in research and innovation. EUREKA projects related to agrifood processing and value-added products can facilitate cross-border collaboration and knowledge exchange among SMEs.
- **F.** European Innovation Partnerships (EIP-AGRI): EIP-AGRI supports the development and implementation of innovative practices in agriculture and rural areas. It promotes networking and cooperation between farmers, researchers, and other stakeholders, contributing to the enhancement of in-house processing practices.
- **G.** European Network of Living Labs (ENoLL): ENoLL connects living labs across Europe, fostering innovation and co-creation in various domains, including agriculture and food production. Cross-border living lab













collaborations can drive the development of novel in-house processing solutions.

- **H.** Local Food Networks and Cooperatives: Cross-border cooperation can involve the establishment of networks and cooperatives that bring together farmers and producers from different regions. These networks facilitate knowledge exchange, joint marketing efforts, and the distribution of in-house-processed products.
- I. Joint Marketing Campaigns Collaborative marketing campaigns can be organized to promote in-house-processed farm products across multiple EU countries. These campaigns leverage the combined strengths of different regions to increase product visibility and market reach.
- J. Cross-Border Food Festivals and Events: Events that showcase in-house-processed farm products from different EU regions provide opportunities for farmers and producers to connect with consumers and industry professionals. Such events facilitate cross-border networking and the sharing of best practices.

The LEADER initiative of the European Union (EU) also has been researched as far the initiative has been involved in supporting cross-border cooperation and innovative practices in rural areas, including the in-house processing of farm products. LEADER (Liaison Entre Actions de Développement de l'Économie Rurale) is an EU rural development program that focuses on community-led local development. It aims to empower local communities to actively participate in shaping their own development strategies and projects.

LEADER projects often emphasize bottom-up approaches, local engagement, and cooperation between various stakeholders. While LEADER projects can vary from one region to another, they frequently involve initiatives related to rural entrepreneurship, agri-food processing, and sustainable development. Here are some ways in which the LEADER initiative has contributed to cross-border cooperation in in-house-processed farm products:

**K.** Cross-Border Value Chains: LEADER projects have facilitated the development of cross-border value chains for agricultural products. Producers from different regions collaborate to process, market, and distribute their products collectively, thus benefiting from economies of scale and expanding their market reach.











- **L.** Joint Marketing and Branding: LEADER-funded projects have supported joint marketing campaigns and branding efforts for in-house-processed farm products. By pooling resources and promoting products under a shared brand, producers can enhance their visibility and attract a wider consumer base across borders.
- M. Transnational Cooperation: LEADER transnational cooperation projects involve partnerships between local action groups from different countries. These projects facilitate the exchange of knowledge, experiences, and best practices related to rural development, including in-house processing and marketing of farm products.
- **N.** Innovation and Training: LEADER initiatives have provided training and capacity-building opportunities for farmers and producers engaged in inhouse processing. Workshops, seminars, and mentoring programs have focused on innovative processing techniques, quality assurance, and market access.
- **O.** Local Food Networks: LEADER projects have supported the creation of local food networks that span across borders. These networks bring together producers, processors, distributors, and consumers to promote locally produced, in-house-processed food products.
- **P.** Collaborative Facilities: Some LEADER projects have helped establish shared processing facilities where farmers and producers from different regions can access resources and equipment for processing their products. This approach encourages cooperation and resource sharing.
- **Q.** Culinary and Cultural Tourism: LEADER initiatives promoting culinary and cultural tourism often involve the promotion of local specialties and traditional in-house-processed foods. This can attract tourists interested in experiencing authentic regional products.

What is important to note that the specific activities and outcomes of LEADER projects can vary based on the priorities and needs of each local action group and region. However, cross-border cooperation and the development of innovative practices, including in-house processing of farm products, align well with the overarching goals of the LEADER initiative to empower rural communities and promote sustainable rural development across the EU.













As far most of the above-mentioned good practices are relatively well known here in the Guide is provide a short summary of good practices identified within the b-Solutions programme, financed by the European Commission, which to support pilot projects aiming at exploring and overcoming legal and administrative obstacles which block cross-border cooperation.

<u>The CrossMarkets project</u> of the Pannon European Grouping of Territorial Cooperation is implemented within this framework: it examines the cross-border sales possibilities of local products in the border region of Hungary and Croatia by comparing the present legal and administrative frames with the producers' demands and expectations and it proposes measures aiming at facilitating the cross-border sales opportunities of local products.

It is important to mention that the local product marketplaces require development not only in terms of cross-border sales but also in terms of local sales and marketing. That is why awareness raising, formulating well-informed consumer behaviour for favouring local products, producers' cooperation and other interventions must be performed not only on the level of cross-border product sales but on national level too.

The target group of the policy recommendations, in accordance with the goals of CrossMarkets project, is the small-scale producers: in Hungary they are the primary agricultural producers (including small-scale producers and family farmers) in Croatia these are family farms (OPGs). They represent a producer's circle overlapping each other from a legislation point of view: individuals or families living and farming locally, who produce agricultural products typically in small-volume for their own living.

Hereinafter the Hungarian primary agricultural producers (including small-scale producers and family farmers) and the Croatian OPGs (hereinafter referred to as local producer) are referred to jointly as local producer.

There is no harmonised legislation in the EU concerning the small-scale production and sales. Beyond the legal harmonisation of general rules, the legislation of small-scale production is the competence of the member states. The promotion of small-scale producer's food production and sales appear as a goal both in the Hungarian and Croatian legislation.

Now, the local primary agricultural producers have special status in the national level legislation. In several cases concerning local product sales, compared to companies, there are favourable conditions (either tax reduction, light foodhygiene rules, etc.). Since the legal harmonisation between the two countries has not been implemented yet, these special rules and reduced conditions













cannot be "brought across" the border, i.e. a product can only be considered as local product if it is produced in the given country; in other member states these products are under the regulation of general food-security and trading. According to the EU directive concerning the free movement of goods, there is possibility for selling these products in other member states, but in this case these products need to meet the requirements of general import sales provisions instead of legislations concerning local products. This, besides several other obstacles (language difficulties, lack of information, scarce financial resources) paralyse the efforts and possibilities of cross-border sales.

The cross-border sales promotion of local agrarian products can play an important role in providing fresh and healthy food for the people living in the border region, in the market enlargement possibilities of local producers and family farmers and by that in the increase of population-retain power of the country. It can also contribute to the integration of the border region.

It is inevitable, however, to remove present barriers which requires targeted and intergovernmental policy interventions.

There are several solutions to support this producer's-circle, which require policy commitments on different-level: from indirect incentives and removing administrative obstacles to direct subsidies.

The policy recommendations below introduce these possibilities (based on the results of needs and gap analysis of Crossmarkets project):

# I. Easing or removing administrative obstacles within the framework of intergovernmental cooperation

- i. Standardisation of operational conditions of marketplaces, providing bilingual administration
- ii. Providing possibility for selling Croatian products in the Hungarian producer's markets
- iii. Providing the interoperability of local producers' register
- iv. Mutual acceptance of different authorisations, proving warrants and certificates issued by the authorities
- v. Applying standardised (lite) food-hygiene requirements, other safety regulations and minimum requirements
- vi. Facilitation on VAT management
- vii. Standardisation of records maintained by producers.
- viii. Modification of the legislation upon single primary agricultural producer's licence (HU)
  - ix. Simplified administration













- x. Cooperation between competent authorities
- xi. Easing on rules concerning the operation of marketplaces
- II. Creation and application of single (joint) legislation on the food sale conditions along the border food sale Special, lite rules in the cross-border product sale:
  - i. Special possibility of sales via agent
  - ii. Local producers' sales cooperation
  - iii. Direct sale of local farmer's products
  - iv. Jointly operated sales point(s):
  - v. Farmer's shop or chain of shops selling products only from the region, but not direct sale (or at least involving one agent)
  - vi. Online sales, mobile markets
- vii. Joint processing opportunity
- viii. Modification of public procurement practice

## III. Financial aid for cross-border selling

- i. Direct subsidies
- ii. Tax allowances
- iii. Indirect subsidies

#### IV. Related measures

- i. Approach shaping of consumers: demand stimulus effect via marketing actions promoting the demand for healthy and fresh local food, and via strengthening consumer approach awareness through changing consumer habits.
- ii. approach shaping and cooperation promotion of producers: promoting cross-border sales, and cooperation among producers (e.g.: GIE model, food HUB), for example by building relations, by knowledge and experience transfer, by sales cooperation and joint marketing activities.
- iii. Information giving: it is extremely important to have a standardised information surface which contains all the information relevant to cross-border change including rules, forms (both in Hungarian and Croatian).
- iv. Creating regional brand: creating a joint brand for the promotion of quality local products of the border-region
- v. Strengthening the role of local products in tourism: promoting accommodations and catering facilities to include local foods and beverages into their offer. It can be financial incentives or to create relations between tourism businesses and local producers, or to provide information for the creation of cooperation (e.g.: organising local production shows, preparing information publications).













vi. Joint brand building and marketing: producers' cooperation can be directed at joint brand building or joint promotion activities (in a third market for example). Marketing activity can be directed at introducing consumers with cross-border products, organising joint fairs, markets and events, or to consumer approach shaping (strengthening consumer awareness), to regional brand building (for example by the creation of joint cross-border regional brands).

By the joint application of the above mentioned four measures, cross-border local product sales can be supported in a complex way.

The partners in Qualfarm Project could promote a establishment of an <u>European Group of Territorial Cooperation</u> (EGTC) which to support through policy recommendations further sustainable and successful cross boarder initiatives and cooperation, incl. in the in-house-processed farm products.

Other good practices that could be additionally explored, are:

<u>Local Development and Cross Border Cooperation in the area of Agricultural Products and Traditional Food Project (LOC-FOOD)</u>

Interreg's support for a sustainable and competitive tourism

<u>Documents related to the cross-border trade opportunities for agricultural and agro-industrial products</u>

#### 13. CONCLUSIONS

## In this section:

- ✓ are summarized the key points discussed throughout the guide and emphasize the importance of continuous improvement and adaptation in the promotion and marketing of in-house-processed farm products.
- ✓ ae encouraged beneficiaries to implement the strategies outlined in the guide and stay updated with industry trends.

Promoting and marketing in-house-processed farm products requires a well-thought-out strategy and a commitment to continuous improvement. Throughout this guide, we have covered various aspects of promoting and marketing in-house-processed farm products, including understanding the products, identifying target markets, developing marketing strategies, branding and packaging, pricing and positioning, distribution channels, promotional













activities, online presence, collaboration and networking, and monitoring and evaluation.

Here is a summary of the key points discussed:

- **13.1** Understand your in-house-processed farm products and their unique characteristics and benefits. Explore the various types of products that can be produced and processed on the farm.
- **12.1** Identify your target market by analyzing consumer trends and preferences, conducting market research, and segmenting the market to tailor your products effectively.
- **12.2** Develop an effective marketing strategy by setting clear goals, defining your value proposition, and understanding your competitive advantage.
- **12.3** Create a strong brand identity and attractive packaging that communicates the uniqueness and value of your farm products.
- **12.4** Choose the most suitable distribution channels, such as direct sales, farmers' markets, local retailers, and online platforms, to reach your target audience.
- 12.5 Implement a range of promotional activities, including advertising, public relations, social media marketing, influencer collaborations, and hosting events, to raise awareness and generate interest in your farm products.
- 12.6 Establish an online presence and utilize e-commerce platforms to reach a wider customer base. Create a website, optimize product listings, and leverage social media to enhance online visibility and sales.
- 12.7 Emphasize the benefits of collaboration and networking with other local farmers, producers, and stakeholders. Establish partnerships, engage in joint marketing initiatives, and participate in local community events to leverage collective resources and knowledge.
- 12.8 Monitor and evaluate your marketing efforts by tracking sales, customer feedback, and market penetration. Use the data collected to analyze performance, make informed decisions, and continuously improve your marketing strategies.

In conclusion, promoting and marketing in-house-processed farm products is an ongoing process that requires adaptability and continuous improvement. The farm/agricultural industry is dynamic, and staying updated with industry trends, consumer preferences, and emerging marketing strategies is crucial













for success. By implementing the strategies outlined in this guide and embracing a mindset of continuous improvement, you can effectively promote your farm products, reach your target audience, and drive business growth.

Remember, success in promoting and marketing your in-house-processed farm products is a journey.

Stay committed, stay innovative, and always strive to meet the evolving needs and desires of your customers.



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>i</sup> Circular economy introduction

<sup>&</sup>quot; Geographical indications and Quality schemes

iii Cross-border collaboration